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	Clarification

	1
	Question:

Have the projects been designed to run thematically or geographically or a combination of both. Are you testing out different models?
Answer: Part of the aim of the programme was to work at a local level, grassroots based and although we are not explicitly working thematically it is apparent from the projects that there are different themes developing. For example, a number of projects are focused on young people, some focused on homelessness, although there are a number of different key themes emerging. 

	2
	Question:

Are these 59 partnerships new or are some of them existing partnerships that have already been funded before?

Answer:  A combination of the two.
a) Some are building on previous partnerships, some have had previous funding from BIG that has helped to develop partnership working. The nature of this programme has extended existing partnerships more widely to include other organisations. 

b) However, there are quite a lot of new partnerships developing. In terms of how the projects are progressing, those that have worked in partnership together previously are finding partnership working easier and thus may have moved quicker.  Others, particularly the smaller grassroots type organisations that we are funding, have needed more help and have taken longer to get the partnerships in place. But all projects are now up and running effectively.

	3
	Question:  Often Big Lottery provide some kind of development support contract in the early stages for projects. Did you do that in this case and if so who provided it and are they eligible to bid for the evaluation and learning contract? If there was no delivery or development contract up front for this programme and so the projects received no support in advance from an external contractor?
Answer (a): There was no development support in place before the grants were made. We did go out to tender for a Learning and Support contract 11 months ago but we did not award the contract at that time as none of the bidders fulfilled all of the criteria. Acknowledging that projects would need some support in getting work off the ground at an early stage we let a small contract to provide initial support. A consultant was appointed on a short term basis in June 2016 to provide support primarily around projects’ own evaluation work and developing their own outcome measurement systems. The work that has been done will be available to whoever now wins this contract. 
BIG’s Funding Officers have also provided a significant amount of support to projects as they have been setting up. 
Question b

Is the individual company who provided this support eligible to bid for this contract?

Answer (b):
Yes they would be eligible but have indicated that they will not bid for a contract of this size. 

	
	

	4
	Question

Are you able to identify the differences between the requirements of the original tender and this one?
Answer:

Following our failure to appoint when the contract was first advertised, we carried out a market testing exercise in order to test out our assumptions about the scale and scope of the work involved. For the new tender we have clarified a number of areas of the brief, in particular our requirements for service user involvement and beneficiary voice, both are now more clearly defined.
  

	5
	Question

a) Could you also give some detail on what your market scoping activity involved and who was involved? 

Answer:
A market testing exercise was carried out in September 2016 by issuing a PIN notice on the EU tender notice board. It was open to all interested organisations.
b) Question

What did the market testing exercise reveal that made you adapt the specification further? 

Answer:

It confirmed the potential need to develop consortia because of the nature of the contract. We have therefore allowed significantly more time in the tender timelines to allow for this and to hold a Bidders’ Open Day. Aside from that was the need for clarity and we have responded by putting more detail about service user engagement and developing beneficiary voice as well as the role of front line workers and engaging with project evaluators. 
The Market Testing has assured us that the contract did not have any fundamental problems which may have resulted in the low number of bids on first tender exercise. 

	6
	Question

a) Do all the projects have a proportion of their funding built in for working with the programme evaluators? Do they have a percentage allocated for engaging in evaluation?  

Answer: They do not have a percentage specifically set aside for engaging with the programme evaluators but the importance of evaluation and learning has been built into the design of the programme: 

· there is a specific outcome related to learning so that this is embedded throughout the each project
· applicants received support at assessment before applications were submitted  - this emphasised the importance of evaluation throughout the lifetime of their projects and the need to budget for independent evaluations and incorporate costs for attendance at events and working with the programme  Learning, Support and Evaluation contractor. Most have done this. Those that have not can be supported with flexibility in their budgets to enable them to fully engage. Most have budgeted appropriately. 
b) Are they all required to do a local evaluation as well?
Answer: they are very strongly encouraged to commission an independent evaluator and we provided an external consultant to work with them to provide support in commissioning external evaluations. We also encouraged them to commissioning independent evaluations from the start of their projects. The vast majority of the projects are commissioning independent evaluators. 


	7
	Question

a) Could you provide the name of the Consultancy that was commissioned to undertake the evaluation and support work. 

Answer: Ann Sanders Consultancy Services

	8
	Question

Have the projects been given any framework for evaluation to make sure that they are measuring things consistently in order to be able to draw conclusions about what is working?
Answer:
At an early stage it was decided that a common measurement framework was not suitable for this programme because of the range of approaches being used and the range of beneficiary types, and so it would be very difficult to impose a common outcomes framework on this cohort of projects. The key for projects is to try and learn what works and what does not work in addressing hardship crisis. There are different approaches and different strengths to different projects. 
The aim of the support that has been provided by the interim consultant is to help develop ambitions and robustness in this area. There are a number of common measurement tools being used by projects eg WEMWBS and Outcomes Star. At least 50% of the projects will be using either one of those. If they have not been using a formal measurement framework then they have been strongly encouraged to do so. 

However, it is important to note that some bespoke tools are not suitable for this cohort or for a specific project. We did not wish to impose specific measurement tools on a partnership so we are encouraging them to be more robust in their approach. 

	9
	Question (follow-on from question 8)

Did the support the projects received from the Support Consultancy include the collation of any baseline data 

Answer:
All projects were supported by the consultant and BIG’s Funding Officers and encouraged to collect baseline data although we did not specify what that should be as it will vary from project to project. 
The guidance we are giving relates to the importance of the process and the techniques to be used throughout the project. For example, some have looked at existing tools which were not appropriate and thus have developed their own in-house monitoring systems for their particular cohort of beneficiaries.

Important to note that all projects are working to the same four programme outcomes against which they will need to measure progress. Part of the role of the appointed contractor will be to support projects in developing and maintaining appropriate measurement frameworks and sharing good practice – this is new for many projects and they will need support in this area. 

	10
	Question (follow-on from question 9)

What is the main motivation for the projects to carry out evaluations, is it to satisfy the Fund’s requirements, to get future funding or to improve their practices?

Answer:
Though satisfying the Fund’s requirements may have been the motivation in the past, it certainly isn’t the case for this programme. From the start, projects have been encouraged to undertake evaluations for the purpose of measuring and improving their delivery and the impact of the work they are undertaking.  The evaluations will also help influence future funding bids and how projects contribute to the success of the funding programme. 

The evaluations are mainly intended for projects own benefit rather than ours although we are interested in looking at the overall impact of the work they are doing and how that contributes to the success of this funding programme.

	11
	Question 

Are there any individual theories of change for the projects and overall theory of change for the programme?
Answer:
Projects are developing their own theories of change and the interim consultant was brought in to help support them with that. However this support is limited and we would expect further support to be given by the contractor. Some projects are very strong in this area and others have needed more encouragement and support. In some cases we have provided additional funding to help develop this. 

The Help Through Crisis theory of change was prepared during the early development of the programme, and our thinking around the key features moved on from what was originally included. Because of this, it would be misleading if the theory of change was now used as a reference document. The HTC application form which is available as an appendix to the tender document gives full details of the aims and intended outcomes of the programme.

	12
	Question 

Would you say the projects are delivering tried and tested approaches or is there a lot of genuine innovation?
Answer:
We are not experts in this field and this is one of the reasons for us commissioning a learning, support and evaluation contract. Much of the innovation is coming from the collaborative approach projects are taking and providing services on a partnership basis to provide wrap-around support for the client. 

 We hope the space that this funding provides will enable partners to work together more effectively to address hardship crisis and develop innovative solutions as a result. 
The networking and collaborative working that is already developing appears to be a key strength of the projects in supporting beneficiaries and providing wraparound support.

	13
	Question 

How does the funding work, is there a Lead Organisation in the project that receives the funding and then distributes it among the members of the partnership? And could the membership of that partnership change over the five years (Based on experience the projects may recognise the need has changed, such as housing, that had not been envisaged as a key issue at the start)?
Answer:
One organisation takes the lead, signs the grant agreement with BIG and is responsible to BIG for reporting and accounting for the grant. The lead organisation may pass some grant to one or more partners to deliver parts of the project and needs to enter into their own agreement with partners for this purpose. 
The average is 4-6 main partners to each project but the majority also have associate partners who attend steering groups and meetings. They may not be receiving funding but often provide services. 
In our experience some partners do change over the lifetime of the projects. This can be due to a variety of circumstances not foreseen at the outset 

	14
	Question
In the ITT you have stated that the Big Lottery Fund is looking for ‘an innovative approach of delivery’ from the contractor. Could you explain what you mean by ‘innovative approach’?
Answer:
By this we mean that by using your experience and working with the funded projects you would be able to develop new and interesting approaches to involve service users and beneficiaries, work with partnerships, evidence impact under a partnership working model and evidence impact of involvement of beneficiaries and on-going development and real-time learning. 
We hope there is lot to be learned from the projects and the ways in which they work together, how they learn from each other. We envisage that the appointed contractor will be able to gather, formalise and present this learning in a way that may eventually lead on to stronger influencing and improvements for the sector as a whole.

	15
	Question 

Could you clarify what you mean by the ‘Beneficiaries’, are we talking about the beneficiaries of the projects - that is the people in hardship crisis and not the actual projects? 

Answer:
The terms beneficiaries, clients, users and service users are used interchangeably throughout the ITT document and mean people supported by the project who have experienced hardship crisis or risk experiencing hardship crisis. This is likely to be people with lived experience of hardship crisis. For example, the term ‘user-led’ refers to the beneficiaries and not the grant holders. The grant holders are the organisations which receive our grant and manage the projects. 
Most of projects are involving people with lived experience to help develop their voice and will continue to develop this aspect throughout the programme. Many of the delivery approaches have beneficiary involvement already built into the projects. For example, volunteer befrienders, peer researchers, peer mentors, community champions. Many projects are quite well developed in this area. 

	16
	Question 

Have the projects got any form of Legacy requirements built into them specifically in terms of what happens when they finish and are they proposing their own suggestions in that area?
Answer:
Projects were asked for an exit strategy at assessment and this would have addressed this question, so all projects should have this built in. The embedding of learning and the development of beneficiary voice and influencing are key aspects of this programme and all of the projects have this aim going forward. 

	17
	Question 

How interested are the projects and the Big Lottery Fund in scaling up the projects?

Answer:
That is not an issue that we have given a great deal of thought to at this stage. That is not to say we would ignore this going forward. 
If projects are particularly successful in what they are doing and it is apparent that whatever approach they are taking could benefit from scaling up then it is something we may look at. 

Current funding is specifically targeted at projects at their current level. Going forward and certainly over the 5 year lifetime of the programme, if particular developments come through that we were interested in taking forward, then that is something we would consider at that time.

	18
	Question 

Do you have or are you proposing to develop communication platforms for the partnerships?  Is there any intention to use Big Lottery Fund’s communication platform?
Answer:
BIG’s existing platform has not been suitable and a new platform is currently under development. This may be in place by April 2017 and we would then need to consider if it was appropriate for this programme. 

Any bespoke platform developed for this programme would need to be done in collaboration with Big Lottery Fund’s media team. This is something that we would need to consider in conjunction with the contractor at that time. 

	19
	Question 
There is a clear opportunity in this ITT to provide a customised platform and a number of different opportunities. You mention flexibility and a test and learn approach. You can do that in this scale of programme, work fast and change etc, but you cannot do that in an organisation wide platform. There are concerns when you say that we need to comply with a system that may come on stream and not be suitable. 
Answer:
We would only use the BIG platform if it satisfied all the requirements of this contract and programme – usability, accessibility, confidentiality etc – and this would take precedence. We anticipate and would be in favour of a specific platform for this programme and contract, however such a bespoke platform would need to be in line with BIG’s media guidelines.  

	20
	Question 
a) Are the local evaluations looking at implementation and delivery to help understand, as well as looking at what works, why they made the impacts and why they may not have done so?  
Answer:
In order to evaluate what works, local evaluations will certainly need to look at implementation and delivery. But this is also being looked at continually by the partnerships and they are learning on an ongoing basis and changing how they are delivering and implementing the service according to need. This is particularly important with partnership working and ensures that they self-evaluate continually to deliver the most effective service for the beneficiaries. This will be supported and ensured by beneficiary involvement.
However, we anticipate that the appointed contractor will also have a role in looking at implementation and delivery across the programme as a whole in order to assess what works and what doesn’t.
Question b:

Do you know at what stage they will be at with commissioning? Will there be opportunities to influence what the areas actually commission or are we likely to find that they have commissioned local evaluators that are going to do specific activities and not necessarily have the opportunity to review that?

Answer:

A majority of partnerships will have started the commissioning process, and many will have appointed, but we would always see that there is an opportunity to influence that. We agree that it may be problematic if that was not the case and we would be supportive of working with the partnerships and evaluators to develop and support their models going forward. 
It is important to understand that they are often embedded within the projects and some have been involved in partnership meetings. At this stage the main challenges have been bringing the partnerships together and we appreciate that going forward it will be an iterative approach. The key area for development at present is working with partners to agree a common measurement framework for the project - and it is understood that this is likely to change and develop throughout.

This is a real-time, learning focused contract and programme and all involved will be changing and adjusting based on shared learning and experiences. 

	21
	Question 

Are the regions based on the nine core England regions?  Do you have a feel  for how many informal networks are emerging?

Answer:
No. There are 59 projects across England as a whole, and local networks are developing based on location and convenience. Informal networks are being established and going forward most projects will link in with a regional or local network. One of the important aspects of the programme is to share what is working across the country as a whole rather than at local level.

	22
	Question 

In terms of facilitating events, should it be assumed that projects will pay for the travelling costs or will it be part of this contract?
Answer:
The projects should all have built in sufficient resource within their budgets to travel to events organised by the contractor. 

	23
	Question 

In the ITT the Questions 1, 4,5 & 6 seem to be asking for the same information can you explain what the differences are 
Answer:
While Question 1 is seeking your overarching delivery approach to meeting the requirements, the other questions have narrowed down to specific elements of the requirements and expect more detail addressing these specific elements.


